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May 7, 2002

Fran Gillon

Head of Supplier Failure and Licensing

Ofgem

9 Millbank

London

SW1P 3GE

Dear Fran

Arrangements for Gas and Electricity Supply and Gas Shipping Credit Cover

Thank you for inviting us to comment on this consultation document. 

We welcome the consultation and believe that the debate about the ongoing assessment and monitoring of credit levels should be developed alongside the initiatives related to gas supplier and shipper failure and the consequent appointment of a supplier of last resort (SoLR).  We agree that a number of the current mechanisms for managing the financial risk resulting from a gas or electricity supplier or gas shipper failure may be sub-optimal.  We believe that there is a balance to be struck between simplicity and complexity as well as between cost and risk.  Arguably, the simplistic approach adopted thus far has led to both the gas and electricity sectors being significantly over-secured when compared to the level of exposure faced.  We would therefore endorse a broad consideration of the issues raised and the continued development of the alternatives suggested by Ofgem. 

Ofgem’s aim in the context of this consultation is to protect customers.  However, market participants should not be exposed to the costs of inefficient arrangements for minimising the costs of actual or potential failure.  As banks are increasingly carrying the credit risks of the gas and electricity markets, then this inevitably reduces the availability of capital for alternative investments and may affect their appetite to provide such security.  It may also lead to increased cost for such bank considerations as appetite diminishes, particularly at the smaller end of the corporate market.

Alignment of credit arrangements for gas balancing with those in the BSC

Although we understand Ofgem’s view on aligning the regimes we believe that it is more appropriate for individual businesses to determine the most efficient way of providing security.  For the avoidance of doubt, the achievement and maintenance of an investment grade credit rating has costs associated with it.  This needs to be factored in when considering variations in the costs of securing credit faced by different market participants.  This weakens the equity argument and, in any case, it is not clear to us that requiring letters of credit necessarily reduces risk.  In gas, the escalation arrangements put in place through modification 0521 provides a mechanism to respond quickly in the result of deterioration in credit rating.   

On a more general point, we strongly believe that the incentives to balance should be via any cash-out regime and that credit arrangements should be set merely to reflect rather than drive balancing behaviours.

Arrangements for network operators

We do not agree that network operators should simply be able to pass any bad debts through their price control.  They should face incentives to manage their credit position and should be encouraged to develop innovative solutions.  If, for example, commercial insurance was used to provide credit cover then premiums could be recovered via the price control.   

We have already expressed concerns regarding the potential impact of increasing the use of letters of credit, particularly in the current situation where the participants in the gas and electricity markets are collectively over-secured.  Network operators should review their processes for determining the level of security required and draw on practices from other comparable markets where relevant.  We believe that correctly assessing and monitoring credit is a key component within any credit and risk management framework and we would encourage innovation in this area.  A possible option would be to consider credit management practices in similar industries.

Including Code Credit Rules within Transco’s Network Code Modification Procedures  

We agree that Transco’s Code Credit Rules should be brought within Network Code Modification procedures, as this will improve transparency and provide more robust governance of proposed changes to the Code Credit Rules.

Additional changes

There are a number of areas that we believe are worthy of further consideration:

· Where parent companies have a number licenced subsidiaries, it may be appropriate to develop umbrella credit arrangements to reduce the inevitable headroom built into each individual company’s level of credit.  This will improve efficiency but not increase risk;

· In gas, invoicing cycles are such that around 20% of the annual industry costs need to be secured.  Clearly, any reduction in invoicing and settlement cycles may reduce the amount of credit cover needed, but this may be at considerable cost.  We believe that a cost-benefit analysis would be  appropriate so that the issue can be properly considered; 

· We believe that there is merit in considering other forms of credit cover, such as bonds, commercial insurance or mutualisation, so that they can be properly assessed;

· We share the concern that the lack of certainty surrounding the appointment of a SoLR increases the potential for bad debt to accumulate and therefore increases the perception of risk.  As the appointment of the SoLR provides an effective cap on the level of credit risk, this uncertainty has implications for the level of credit cover required.  Clarification of SoLR processes and procedures would, we believe, be beneficial and would support other work that we know is already progressing in gas.

We trust that these comments are helpful and would be happy to discuss them further.

Yours sincerely

Registered office:  Innogy plc, Windmill Hill Business Park, Whitehill Way, Swindon, SN5 6PB

Registered in England and Wales no:  3892782
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